
Approved 5-11-18 

Page 1 of 4 

 

UNIVERSITY REVIEW COMMITTEE 

Illinois State University 
 

Thursday, April 19, 2018 

3 p.m., Hovey 102 

 

 

MINUTES 

 

Members present: Sam Catanzaro (non-voting), Diane Dean, Kevin Edwards, Joe Goodman, Sheryl Jenkins,  

Rachel Shively, Sarah Smelser 

 

Members not present: Angela Bonnell, Michael Byrns, Doris Houston 

 

Others present: Bruce Stoffel (recorder) 

 
Note: In these minutes “URC” refers to the University Review Committee at Illinois State University; “Caucus” refers to the 

Faculty Caucus of the Academic Senate at Illinois State University; “ASPT” refers to appointment, salary, promotion, and tenure 

policies of Illinois State University; “ASPT Policies” refers to Faculty Appointment, Salary, Promotion, and Tenure Policies 

effective January 1, 2017, Illinois State University; “CFSC” refers to college faculty status committee as provided for in ASPT 

Policies of Illinois State University; “DFSC” refers to department faculty status committee as provided for in ASPT Policies of 

Illinois State University; “SFSC” refers to school faculty status committee as provided for in ASPT Policies of Illinois State 

University; “PRPA” refers to the Office of Planning, Research, and Policy Analysis at Illinois State University; and “ad hoc 

equity review committee” refers to the Ad Hoc Committee for ASPT Equity Review established by the Faculty Caucus of the 

Academic Senate at Illinois State University. Any references in these minutes to “DFSC” refer to both DFSC and SFSC, and any 

references to “department” refer to both department and school. 

 

I. Call to order 

 

Chairperson Diane Dean called the meeting to order at 3:05 p.m. A quorum was present. 

 

II. Recommendations to URC from the Ad Hoc Committee for ASPT Equity Review: 

Conversation with committee chairperson Dr. Susan Kalter 

 

Dean introduced the primary topic of the meeting, recommendations made by the Ad Hoc Committee for ASPT 

Equity Review to URC, in advance of committee chairperson Susan Kalter joining the meeting to discuss the 

recommendations. Dean noted that she, Doris Houston, and Sam Catanzaro served on the committee and can 

also provide insights regarding committee recommendations. 

 

Dean said this meeting is an opportunity for Kalter to review the report compiled by the ad hoc equity review 

committee (see attached) with URC members and for URC members to ask questions of Kalter regarding the 

report. Dean said that at the next URC meeting URC members will consider the information provided by Kalter 

and discuss the recommendations among themselves. Dean explained that the role of URC vis-à-vis equity 

review at this time is to review the committee report, formulate comments and recommendations to the Caucus 

regarding the report, and submit them to the Caucus for its consideration. She explained that once the Caucus 

approves an equity review plan, URC will be responsible for implementing it. For that reason, she said, URC 

members have to make sure they are comfortable with the plan and the ability of URC to implement it. URC 

will work with other entities to do so, Dean said, explaining that URC will be responsible for oversight of the 

implementation process. Dean stressed that she does not want URC members to feel pressured to submit 

recommendations to the Caucus this spring. She explained that planning for data gathering can still begin this 

spring even if approval of the equity review recommendations by the Caucus does not occur until fall. She 

reported that she is arranging a meeting with Kalter, Catanzaro, and the director of the Office of Planning, 

Research, and Policy Analysis to discuss how data will be compiled. Catanzaro suggested asking Kalter if the 

Caucus could finalize the disciplinary articles before it considers the equity review recommendations, given the 

work that will need to be done in fall 2018 to prepare for implementation of the disciplinary articles. Dean 

agreed. 

 



Approved 5-11-18 

Page 2 of 4 

 

Dean noted that one issue the ad hoc committee did not discuss was equity review distribution plans, even 

though the final committee report references such plans. She noted that the only guidance regarding this matter 

is in the ad hoc equity review committee charge, which states that development of appropriate equity re-

distribution plans is the responsibility of URC, which is to recommend such plans to the Caucus and the 

President for their approval. She cited salary inequities as one circumstance in which an equity distribution plan 

may be needed. She said if the salary study conducted in the first year of the five-year study cycle concludes 

that inequities exist, URC will work with the academic units in which the inequities are identified to understand 

the reasons for them. But aside from that review, the ad hoc equity review committee report does not provide 

URC guidance as to how inequities are to be addressed.  

 

Catanzaro said that although he missed some meetings of the ad hoc equity review committee, he too does not 

recall any conversations and did not read anything in meeting materials regarding equity distribution plans. He 

explained that ASPT policies provide for decisions by ASPT committees regarding how salary increment funds 

are to be distributed. If inequities are found to exist in a department, Catanzaro asked, where will the funds 

come from to address them; should URC ask departments to expend all of their annual salary increment pools 

(provided for in ASPT Policies and allocated by the Provost) to address the inequities? 

 

Rachel Shively asked if analyses across categories like gender are to involve comparisons across the University 

or just within units of the University. Catanzaro explained that data for the entire University are included in the 

salary database but there is a control variable for rank. He cautioned that URC should carefully select control 

variables so the model does not collapse under its own weight. He explained that one of his roles is to help 

persons involved with equity review understand how equity review works, if not statistically then conceptually.  

 

Kalter joined the meeting at 3:20 p.m. Persons present introduced themselves. Dean updated Kalter regarding 

the committee discussion of the equity review report thus far. She noted that one request of URC members is for 

the Caucus to finalize the disciplinary articles before the Caucus finalizes the equity review plan. Kalter said 

that is her intent. 

 

Kalter then reviewed the proposed scope of equity review during each year of the five-year equity review cycle. 

The ad hoc equity review committee divided review activities across five years, she said, so equity review 

would be more manageable. She noted that the schedule of equity review studies is based in part on what other 

universities have done.  

 

Kalter first discussed the salary study scheduled for the first year of the five-year cycle. She reported that the ad 

hoc equity review committee had lengthy discussions regarding this component. One issue discussed is whether 

data regarding disability status could be collected. Another, she said, is country of origin; because that 

information will not be available for the analysis, the committee had to settle for data regarding continent of 

origin, which may not be particularly meaningful for the analysis. Kalter explained that URC should feel free to 

recommend any other factors URC might find useful, noting that it might not be possible for PRPA to provide 

some types of data due to confidentiality concerns. Kalter then reviewed controls recommended by the ad hoc 

equity review committee for the salary study, noting that most other universities conducting equity review used 

such controls. She also noted that there are different types of models that can be run to analyze the salary data. 

She concluded her overview of the salary study by noting that URC will need to work with CFSCs once salary 

data have been compiled to determine how those data relate to performance evaluation outcomes.   

 

Kalter then discussed the second year study, which, she said is intended to probe the quantitative dynamics of 

the tenure and promotion processes. She noted that qualitative analysis is not part of the methodology. Among 

the questions to be studied in the second year of the cycle are how many faculty members leave the University 

during the tenure or promotion processes, why faculty members leave before their probationary period has 

elapsed, and whether there is disproportionate representation among those who leave.  

 

Kalter continued with an overview of the study proposed for the third year of the cycle. She explained that the 

ad hoc equity review committee had considered studying the dynamics of two post-tenure-decision levels: what 

happens from the time of tenure to the time of promotion to Professor and what happens from the time of 

promotion to Professor to retirement; the equity review committee instead decided to collapse those two levels 

into one.  



Approved 5-11-18 

Page 3 of 4 

 

The proposed year four study, Kalter explained, involves two simpler studies: one involves studying data 

provided by the Provost regarding unsatisfactory performance ratings, particularly studying the data by equal 

opportunity categories to search for patterns of disproportionality; the second study examines data provided by 

chairpersons and directors regarding resignations and counteroffers. Among the questions to be addressed, she 

said, are who asks for counteroffers, who receives them, and whether counteroffers are successful in retaining 

faculty members. Other questions to be probed, Kalter said, are what happens to faculty members who do not 

ask for a counteroffer, what percentage of salary does the counteroffer constitute, and whether the University is 

losing faculty members because they prefer to work in larger cities or at other Research II universities.  

 

Kalter ended her overview of the five-year cycle with a description of the report proposed for the fifth year of 

the cycle. She said the fifth-year report is intended to document what is going on with the disciplinary articles 

once they are in place. She explained that the study will document the number of sanctions, suspensions, and 

dismissal cases and their outcomes. She noted that the disciplinary articles provide for URC receiving annual 

reports from the Provost regarding disciplinary cases, however the data provided by the Provost will not 

necessary be disaggregated by affirmative action categories.  

 

Kalter then offered comments regarding the memorandum used by the ad hoc equity review committee to 

transmit the committee recommendations to URC.  

 

Kalter noted that there had been discussion among Caucus members whether the equity review study should 

address inversion and compression. Some Caucus members, she said, wanted the study to address inversion and 

compression issues in addition to equal opportunity issues while other Caucus members only wanted the study 

to address equal opportunity. The decision was made, Kalter said, to review equity only from the perspective of 

equal opportunity matters. This approach, she noted, is consistent with the focus of equity review at the time it 

was introduced into ASPT policies in the 1970s. That said, Kalter continued, the ad hoc equity review 

committee recommends that the administration continue to monitor inversion and compression. She noted Joe 

Goodman’s work on behalf of URC that led to increases in salary increments associated with promotion, adding 

that those increments should be monitored regularly for their competitiveness.  

 

Another major issue of discussion by the ad hoc equity review committee, Kalter said, was whether the equity 

review study should investigate salaries of non-tenure track faculty members, as the University of North 

Carolina Chapel Hill has done. She reported that the ad hoc committee decided not to study non-tenure track 

faculty salaries because they are not covered by ASPT Policies. Nonetheless, Kalter added, the ad hoc equity 

review committee wants the Caucus to study how salaries of non-tenure track faculty members may impact 

salaries of faculty members who are subject to ASPT Policies. 

 

Kalter added that the ad hoc equity review committee has cited numerous actions URC can take to promote 

equity from the perspective of equal opportunity and access even before URC has data to review. Kalter cited as 

examples providing guidance to units regarding templates used to collect information for faculty productivity 

reports and studying distribution of goods that support faculty, such as graduate assistantships, even though 

their allocation is not under the direct jurisdiction of ASPT Policies.  

 

Shively said she remembers an observation documented in findings of the recent cultural climate survey that 

faculty members of color are often called upon to serve on multiple committees to provide the perspective of 

persons of color. Shively asked if the ad hoc equity review committee had looked into the issue of service load 

resulting from such requests. Kalter responded that the issue of service load was noted by the ad hoc equity 

review committee but was not studied at length. Dean reminded Kalter that the Caucus had asked URC to 

consider the issue of service load, but URC has been unable to do so given the work it has had with the 

disciplinary acts and other matters. Kalter said she figures service load is a more granular issue that is difficult 

to capture and suggested that it might be appropriate for colleges to ask their departments to look into the issue. 

Shively said URC could suggest that the colleges do so. Catanzaro agreed. He added that URC might seek ways 

to mentor faculty in learning how to say no to excessive service requests and might also seek ways to mentor 

chairpersons in making service assignments fairly and responsibly.  

 



Approved 5-11-18 

Page 4 of 4 

 

Kalter ended her overview by urging URC to look critically at the ad hoc equity review committee 

recommendations, adding that no one will be offended if URC suggests changes. That is the role of URC, she 

noted. Dean thanked Kalter for that freedom.  

 

Dean asked if URC members had any other questions for Kalter. Kevin Edwards asked about URC monitoring 

of inversion and compression every year. Kalter suggested that URC could include review of salary increments 

related to promotion on a list of issues to periodically consider, to keep those increments current and 

competitive. She said it is clear to her that the Provost is concerned about inversion and compression as a 

phenomenon even though there may not be money to address it. Kalter added that the ad hoc equity review 

committee noted that inversion and compression is not addressed in Section II.D, however the committee wants 

URC to continue thinking about the phenomenon and how URC might guide departments when making equity 

adjustments for their faculty members.  

 

Edwards and Sheryl Jenkins left the meeting at 4 p.m. 

 

Kalter noted that DFSCs at the University take different approaches to the question whether a faculty member 

who is not performing at the level of their colleagues should receive an equity adjustment to their salary. Kalter 

said while it may be preferable to allow those different approaches across the system, doing so may further 

inconsistencies across the University. That is why URC needs to work with units on salary equity, Dean 

observed.  

 

III. Review of CFSC standards 

 

Dean tabled review of CFSC standards submitted by the College of Applied Science and Technology and the 

College of Arts and Sciences until the next URC meeting (scheduled for 2 p.m., April 26, 2018, Hovey 102). 

 

IV. Other 

 

There was no other business to come before the committee. 

 

V. Adjournment 

 

Smelser moved that the meeting adjourn. Goodman seconded the motion. The motion carried on voice vote, all 

voting in the affirmative. The meeting adjourned at 4:05 p.m. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

Sheryl Jenkins, Secretary 
Bruce Stoffel, Recorder 

 
Attachments: 

 

Ad Hoc Committee for ASPT Equity Review committee charge (n.d.); Memorandum to University Review Committee from Ad 

Hoc Committee for ASPT Equity Review re recommendations for review and approval (n.d.) 

 






















